SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 25, 2017
9:00 a. m

9: 00: 38 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Nat asha von | mhof

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Peter M cciche

ALSO PRESENT

Al exa Tonkovi ch, Executi ve Di rector, Al aska Seaf ood
Mar keting Institute, Juneau.

SUMVARY

APRESENTATI ON: | NTENT LANGUAGE STATUS UPDATE

9:01: 42 AM

ALEXA  TONKOVI CH, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA  SEAFOOD
MARKETI NG | NSTI TUTE, JUNEAU, highlighted the Power Point
presentation, "Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute: Senate
Fi nance Conmttee" (copy on file). She shared the subjects
that she would cover in the presentation

Ms. Tonkovich I|ooked at slide 2, "Wat is the Al aska
Seaf ood Marketing Institute":

*A Partnership of public and private sectors



*A Public corporation that fosters effective alignnent
with industry marketing efforts

A CGovernor-appointed Board of Di rectors: five
processors, two commercial harvesters

*Alaska’s official seafood pronotion arm supports
Al aska seafood industry through pronotion of Al aska
seaf ood products, education and research

Ms. Tonkovich addressed slide 3, "Alaska Seafood Industry
Econom ¢ | npacts":

Seaf ood I ndustry Directly Enploys 60,000 Wrkers
Largest Private Sector Enployer in the State

Contributes Approximately $138.6 MIllion in Taxes,
Fees, and Self-Assessnents Wich Help Fund State,
Local and Federal Governnent

| ndustry Operates 8600 Vessels and 176 Shore Pl ants

Ms. Tonkovich discussed slide 4, "Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute Volune and Value by Species.”" The charts showed
the value and volune of the Alaska seafood harvest. The
volume was the average of 2014 and 2015, at approxinately 6
billion pounds. The <chart showed the inportance of
whitefish in the industry. She remarked that the real
strength of the industry was the diversity. The industry
was not dependent on the |andmark species, but the val ue
canme from many different species.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested a regional breakdown of the
seafood sources. M. Tonkovich agreed to provide that
i nformati on.

Ms. Tonkovich highlighted slide 5, "Al aska Seafood Export
Mar ket s"

Export to 120 Countries
1.1 MIllion MI and $3.3 Billion

Groundfish 55 percent

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 01/ 25/17 9:00 A M



Sal non 25 to 33 percent

Chi na - Largest Partner

EU and Japan - Largest Markets

Exports = 60 to 70 percent of val ue
Senator O son queried the role of the Conmmunity Devel opnent
Quota (CDQ M. Tonkovich replied that the CDQ were
partners of ASM. She shared the processors may pay into
the ASM landing tax. She agreed to provide further
i nformati on.
Senator O son wondered whether there was a direct
relationship with CDQ M. Tonkovich replied that they were
partners, and worked cl osely when possi bl e.

9: 05: 05 AM

Ms. Tonkovich addressed slide 6, "Historical Ex- vessel
Val ue and Harvest Val ue":

Some decline in value due to strong dollar,
oversupply, smaller harvests of high-val ue species

Chal | enges/ Qpportunities

V5. Tonkovich highlighted slide 7, "Alaska Seaf ood
Mar keting Institute G obal Factors | npacting Val ue”

Negative Factors

Strong dollar hurts U S. exporters and helps
conpetitors

Eco- | abel s di m ni sh Al aska’ s ability to
di stinguish on sustainability

Conmpetition fromfarned and i nported seafood

Volatility of wild harvests, decreased quota for
key species

Russi an enbargo and Ukrai nian confli ct

Positi ve Factors

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 01/ 25/17 9:00 A M



A obal sal non supplies tightening
Stronger Yen

Long term demand vs. supply
Strong Al aska Seaf ood brand

Ms. Tonkovich addressed slide 8, "Highlight International
Trends":

Al aska Seaf ood, FOREVER W LD, Food Truck Visits
Street/Food Fairs in Germany

Ms. Tonkovich | ooked at slide 9, "Hi ghlight Internationa
Trends":

E- COWERCE PLATFORMS, Used Wdely In ASIA and EU
WE ARE WLD: SALMON SOWMELI ERS

Ms. Tonkovich addressed slide 10, "August 10th Alaska WId
Sal non Day":

First ever Alaska WId Sal non Day
EXCI TEMENT GENERATED THROUGH
Snapchat geofilter
Soci al Medi a Channel s
Traditional Media Rel ations
Digital and PR efforts secured nore than
94 M LLI ON | MPRESSI ONS

Ms. Tonkovi ch di scussed slide 11, "Good News!":

U S. Seafood Consunption up by Nearly One Pound Per
Person in 2015

This is the biggest leap in seafood consunption in 20
year s!

Co-Chair Hoffman queried the species wth the |[argest
growh. M. Tonkovich replied that shrinp was the nunber
one speci es consunmed by Anericans.

Co- Chair Hoffman specifically wondered what species had the
greatest growmh. M. Tonkovich believed it was shrinp. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 01/ 25/17 9:00 A M



stressed that there was a hope that it would be Al aska
seaf ood.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the anount of seafood consuned
by the average U. S. citizen. M. Tonkovich believed that it
was fifteen pounds per person, but agreed to provide the
exact nunber.

Ms. Tonkovi ch hi ghl i ght ed slide 12, "I nternational
Recognition for RFM:

Al aska Responsi bl e Fi sheri es Managenent (RFM
successfully benchmarked against d obal Sustainable
Seafood Initiative (GSSI)’'s d obal Benchmark Tool .

GSSI is a global platform to streamine seafood
pur chasi ng deci sions while pronoting sustainability.

Alaska RFMis the first certification to do so.
Ms. Tonkovich | ooked at slide 13, "Hi ghlight Swap Meat":

The ASM US Foodservice program sponsored a national
“Swap Meat” conpetition for professional chefs.

CHEFS WERE ASKED TO SWAP THE MEAT IN A RECI PE FOR
ALASKA SEAFOCD AND THEN SUBM T THE NEW RECI PE TO ASM

9:10: 27 AM

Ms. Tonkovi ch addressed slide 14, "Hi ghlight Al aska Brew ng
Co-op Pronotion":

CO- OP between ASM, Al aska Brewi ng Conpany and Texas
retailer HE B

| N-STORE DI SPLAYS near the seafood departnent and
sanpling at 70 stores

| NSTANT- REDEEM COUPON

Ms. Tonkovich displayed slide 15, "In-state Qutreach Town
Hal | Meetings":

Series of informal town hall-style neetings to provide
harvest and market updates

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 01/ 25/17 9:00 A M



2016: Anchorage, Juneau, Cor dova, Pet ersburg and
Naknek

Where to next?... Stay Tuned!

Ms. Tonkovi ch addressed slide 16, "Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute Budget." She stated that each year one-half of
one percent of the vessel value of Alaska' s comrercial
seaf ood harvest was paid by processors to the Departnent of
Revenue (DOR). The revenue was statutory designated program
receipts (STPR), and was $9.6 nillion collected in the
year. She stated that ASM also received approximtely $4.5
mllion annually in federal funds through the USDA Market
Access Program Those funds were wused to fund the
i nternational prograns. She stressed that the federal npney
was a conpetitive grant, and ASM conpeted annually wth
100 other comodity groups including beef, pork, and
chi cken.

Ms. Tonkovich | ooked at slide 17, "Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute." The slide was a visual breakdown of the revenue
stream

Ms. Tonkovi ch addressed slide 18, "2016 Legislative Intent:
Budget ":

It is the intent that ASM develop a plan to phase out
reliance on UG- by FY19

* Reduced Spend Pl an
* Gradual , sustainable ranp down of expenditures

* Suppl ement al Fundi ng Task Force
*Addi tional federal grants awarded

*Options to Increase Industry Revenue
*According to statute, revenue can be increased
from .5 percent to .6 percent, raising an
additional $1 mllion annually

Ms. Tonkovi ch discussed slide 19, "Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute Projected Budget." She stated that in FY 16 the
ASM board of directors reduced the spend plan to preserve
funds into FY 17. They realized that wthout additional
revenue, and w thout significant spending reductions, the
current level of expenditures was not sustainable. The
table showed that ASM's spend plan was reduced in the
current year. She stated that ASM would slowy ranp down
expenditures to a nore sustainable |level. She stressed that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 01/ 25/ 17 9:00 A M



ASM nmust maintain protect and maintain federal USDA Market
Access Program funding of $4.5 million per year. The grant
required a match, which was previously provided through the
general funds, but now mnmust be matched through industry
funds. She stated that it nmay disproportionately the
donestic mar ket i ng program because the grant was
exclusively for international marketing.

Ms. Tonkovich displayed slide 20, "2016 Session Legislative
Intent: Positions":

It is the intent of the legislature that all ASM
positions are in Al aska by FY19

Donesti c U. S Ret ai | , Foodservi ce Pr ogr ans,
Sustainability (6 PCNs)

*Cost-Effective Market Access

*Rel ationships and Interaction wth Mrketing
Partners

sEffective Marketing I npacts Al askans

9:15:47 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman surmi sed that there were no plans to bring
the positions to Alaska. He stressed that there had been a
decline in other jobs. He queried the total value of the
positions that nmay assist the Al aska econony. M. Tonkovich
replied that the positions in Seattle was estimted at
$916, 944 for FY 17.

Co-Chair Hoffman wondered whether that nunber included
benefits. Ms. Tonkovich replied in the affirmtive.

Co- Chair Hof fman queried the support budget of the Seattle
office. Ms. Tonkovich replied that the Seattle office rent
was $82, 706.

Co- Chair Hoffman wondered whether the board felt that
Al askans did not understand salnmon and other resource
mar keting. He queried the justification to not discuss the
i ssue. Ms. Tonkovich agreed to informthe board of Co-Chair
Hof f man' s concer ns.

Co-Chair Hoffrman felt that it mght be wiser to return the

office to Alaska. He felt that Al askans had the capacity
and capability of operating ASM .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 01/ 25/ 17 9:00 A M



9:20: 30 AM

Senat or von | mhoff queried the amount of the state match
Ms. Tonkovich responded that it was not specified in
federal statute. She stated that typically ASM tried to
mat ch one-to-one, but was no longer able to do that. She
stressed that, because it was a conpetitive grant, there
were many factors that ASM was scored.

Co-Chair MacKinnon remarked that the |legislature had
previ ous asked ASM to provide a plan on reduced use of
general fund dollars, based on the critical condition of
the savings accounts. She appreciated the work of ASM to
mar ket Al aska products, but she felt that the rea
conversation was related to slide 19. She felt that slide
19 did not provide nmuch insight. She felt that ASM had a
limted response to the question. She encouraged the board
to discuss the use of the matching funds, and how they
could maintain the federal grant the 50 percent reduction
of general fund spending. She felt that the state could no
| onger maintain the program She shared that Decenber 2015
or 2016 showed Al aska as higher than the national average
of unenpl oynent. She believed that Al aska was currently at
t he hi ghest unenploynent rate of all the states. She | ooked
at slide 3, and wondered how nany Al aska enployees were
residents and nonresidents. Ms. Tonkovich agreed to provide
that information

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at slide 19, and felt that it was
difficult to ook at the ending carryforward bal ance. She
wondered whether there was a way to elimnate the FY 17
savings draw, because of the critical position of the
state. Ms. Tonkovich replied that the intent |anguage was
to replace general funds by FY 19. She shared that there
was not a discussion beyond that, because there was nothing
beyond that intent |anguage.

9:25:33 AM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon stressed that it was the fifth
consecutive year t hat the legislature substantially
wi t hdrew from savings at billions of dollars. She supported

ASM, but hoped to reduce general fund spending. She
stressed that she wanted to examne the prospective
spending in FY 18. She wondered whether there was a way to
elimnate the general fund spending with the [east anount

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 01/ 25/17 9:00 A M



of harm so ASM could use its own reserves. She hoped to
work together. She |ooked at page 2 of the plan, which
stated that the ASM board needed flexibility to react in
changes in market conditions or disasters. She stressed
that other departnments had a "lever" to go to the
Legi slative Budget and Audit (LB&\) Conmittee in the
interim for additional spending authority. She understood
that it was "hollow noney", but felt that it was a way to
reflect the downturn in the state's econony. She wondered
how ASM would respond to a total elimnation one year
sooner, given that oil prices were starting to recover, but
there was still a $2.7 billion deficit. She stressed that
the governor's budget did not fund comunity assistance,
whi ch was inportant to the legislature and the communities.
Ms. Tonkovich replied that ASM was at $2 nmllion and $1
mllion the follow ng year for general fund noney requests.
She stated that elimnating those funds would require ASM
to draw down a greater percentage of their reserve funding,
and slightly reduce their marketing spend plan to avoid
drawing down to zero. She explained that ASM hoped to
mai ntain its budget authority, which she stressed was not
actual funding, rather the authority to collect funding.
She stated that the authority gave the board flexibility to
react quickly to changing market conditions, such as
Fukushi ma.

9:29:13 AM

Co-Chair Hoffrman asked for the breakdown of the $138.6
mllion that the industry contributes in taxes, fees, and
sel f-assessnents to help state, f ederal , and | ocal
gover nnment s. MVs. Tonkovich agreed to provide that
i nformati on.

Co- Chair MacKinnon queried how nmany eligible processors
could vote. She understood that there was a requirenent for
25 percent for a question, and 51 percent for eligibility
for the processors. M. Tonkovich agreed to provide that
i nformation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for the percentage from 2014. Ms.
Tonkovich replied that the processors nust represent nore
than 50 percent of the value of the seafood |andings in
each year. She agreed to provide the nunber of specific
processors that nmade up that proportion.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 01/ 25/17 9:00 A M



Co- Chair MacKinnon wanted to understand the voting. She
announced that other boards were |ooking at creative ideas
to partner in advertising for Alaskan products. She queried
the percentage of tax used to fund ASM. M. Tonkovich
replied that ASM was currently at 0.5 percent, and 0.6 was
the highest to statutorily assess the industry.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that the industry received tax
credits. She queried the breakdowmn of the credits. She
shared that fishing had received many beneficial tax
credits, versus the benefit to the state. She wondered
whet her there was a way to nmeasure the effectiveness of the
food truck program M. Tonkovich replied that there were
di fferent performance neasures and netrics for the various
activities. She shared that they neasured participation,
sal es figures, and consuner research. She agreed to provide
the specific evaluation neasures for the food truck
program

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whet her the evaluation of sales
would show sales growh in the areas wth advertising
progranms. M. Tonkovich replied the there were different
factors in markets and prograns. She stated that the sales
were neasured, if the sales were pronoted. She agreed to
provi de further information.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered whet her the dollars were
tracked.

Senator von |mhof wondered what it nmeant to work closely
with the CDQ. She asked whether the CDQ invested revenue
into the seafood industry. M. Tonkovich explained that
there was a CDQ on the board, and CDQ were often worked
with in rural comunities.

9:35: 54 AM

Vi ce-Chair Bishop stressed the inportance of Alaska Hire,
even at 80 percent.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered when the ASM board was
scheduled to neet. M. Tonkovich replied that the next
schedul ed board neeting was My 8.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested a response by February 18. M.
Tonkovi ch queried the specific requested responses.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 01/ 25/ 17 9:00 A M



9:39: 01 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested a plan for Alaska Hre. She
under st ood the additional costs.

Ms. Tonkovich agreed to follow up on the specifics. She
stressed that ASM had two-thirds of its marketing staff in
Al aska.

Senat or Dunl eavy encouraged a discussion in the ASM board
related to changi ng sone regul ati ons.

9:46: 39 AM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon di scussed the followi ng day's agenda.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT
9:47:57 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:47 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 01/ 25/ 17 9:00 A M



